United Nations

(, E N E R A L g: THIRD COMMITTEE
ASSEMBLY 41st meeting
:“"‘"—7 held on
THIRTY-SEVENTH SESSION (oA, § Monday, 15 November 1982
Official Records* NOT REMOY™] at 10.30 a.m.
20N poe New York

.i: .‘-’_'i { .'-"'-:I;r}:—H A ‘

i figr

i
AR b i it

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 4lst MEETING

Chairman: Mr. CALERO RODRIGUES (Brazil)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 90: OFFICE OF THE UNITED NATIONS HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR REFUGEES

(a) REPORT OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER

(b) QUESTION OF THE CONTINUATION OF THE OFFICE OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER

(c) ASSISTANCE TO REFUGEES IN AFRICA: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

* This record is subjct to correction. Correctiona should be sent under the
signature of 8 member of the delegation concerned within one week of the date of
publication to the Chief of the Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550,
866 United Nations Plaza (Alcoa Building), and incorporated in a copy of the

record.

Corrections wil be issued after the end of the session, in & separate fascicle for
each Committee.

82-57662 43885 (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.3/37/SR.41
17 November 1982

ORIGINAL: FENGLISH

Loa



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.45 a.m,

AGENDA ITEM 90: OFFICE OF THE UNITED NATIONS HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR REFUGEES
(A/37/3 (pPart 1I, chap. III and IX), A/37/12 and add.l, A/37/84, A/37/324,
A/37/431, A/37/438, A/37/505, A/37/522, A/37/557)

(a) REPORT OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER
(b) QUESTION OF THE CONTINUATION OF THE OFFICE OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER
(c) ASSISTANCE TO REFUGEES N AFRICA: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

1. Mr. HARTLING (United Nal:ions High Commissioner for Refugees) said that the
role of UNHCR was the hub of the international community's efforts to solve the
problems of refugees in the spirit of the Charter of the ynited Nations, by
restoring them to a dignified existence and enabling them to better their lives.
under the terms of its Statu:e, UNHCR'S work was humanitarian and social and was
entirely non-political. 1In t:he past 30 years, there had been not only a sharp
increase in the number of Members of the ynited Nations, representing a wide
variety of political trends, but also a growing complexity in the nature of refugee
problems and a tendency to iatroduce politics into problems which, by their very
nature, ought to remain non-political. It was crucial that Member States had
maintained the purely humani:arian character of UNHCR. Everything possible must be
done to preserve intact the non-political credo which was essential for the
functioning and survival of (JNHCR.

2. The General Assembly had always regarded the original mandate of UNHCR as
remaining fundamental and valid and as a solid basis on which to build in accordance
with the evolution of humani:arian needs arising from man-made disasters in the
world. The role of the High Commissioner in humanitarian efforts had gradually
expanded, and that had been reflected in various General aAssembly resolutions which
had originated in the Third Zommittee. UNHCR had developed from a body dealing
solely with persons able to substantiate a well-founded fear of persecution by
reason of race, religion, nationality or political opinion into one covering a far
wider range of situations, including numerous categories of displaced persons and
repatriates who had often recturned home in large numbers after independence or a
change of circumstances in their country of origin., That evolution had been based
on a continuing dialogue witn Governments that had pledged their responsibility,
given their support and created favourable conditions for any action proposed by
UNHCR. Indeed, the support >f first-asylum countries was paramount to the task of
UNHCR. Those countries, whizh were often developing countries, showed great
hospitality in receiving refigees. However, in order to deal with the problems
involved they needed substantial international help. TO that end, other Governments
offered resettlement possibilities, sometimes in considerable numbers., They also
made generous financial contributions to UNHCR programmes. The participation of
such Governments was equally essential, both for the refugees and for the success
of the work of UNHCR.

[eee



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 3

(Mr. Hartling, UNHCR)

3. UNHCR had received general suppert in the Third Committee., However, the
ability of the ynited Nations system, and UNHCR in particular, to deal with the
refugee problem and meet existing needs was founded on credibility, That was where
its performance, on the one hand, and dialogue with Governments, on the other,
became important. While strengthening its links and co-ordination with other

bodies of the ynited Nations system, UNHCR had adopted a series of internal measures
designed to improve its capacity to deal with problems in the event of a crisis and
in the longer term. In the process, it had kept Governments informed of its
activities through field representatives all over the world, through direct contacts
during missions and through the ambassadors of Governments at Geheva or New York.

It deeply appreciated the positive approach taken by Governments today and, above
all, the confidence they had shown it,

4, A decision on the continuation of UNHCR beyond 31 pDecember 1983 must be taken
at the current session. He was sure that Member States would agree that the office
of the High Commissioner should simply be continued. 1In that connection, the UNHCR
Executive Committee, at its thirty-third session, had adopted a decision which
expressed the belief that the mandate of UNHCR was sufficiently flexible and
adaptable to changing requirements and thus adequate in the evolving refugee
situation. He was sure that Governments would continue to preserve the strictly
humanitarian character of the office. It was by virtue of that character that
UNHCR was able to avoid involvement in the so-called root causes, the reasons that
caused persons to leave their countries in large numbers. 0Obviously, the root
causes must be tackled, but that must be done in appropriate forums, since it was a
political activity. Assistance to victims of discord and repression must be a
humanitarian and non-political task,

5. In order to build their future, refugees needed protection as well as
assistance, and he urged Governments to offer the maximum support for the task of
international protection. It was for that reason that UNHCR considered it very
important that States should become parties to the international instruments
relating to the status of refugees, namely, the 1951 ynited Nations Convention
relating to the Status of Refugees and the 1967 Protocol. 1In the past five years,
20 states had acceded to those instruments, bringing the total number of parties
to 93 on all continents. Protection also had a more immediate and vital meaning
affecting the safety and well-being of the individual, and sometimes even his
life. That called for the universal application, at all times and in all cases,
of the principles of asylum and non-refoulement. Countries sometimes claimed that
political or economic difficulties prevented them from observing those principles.
Clearly the application of such principles might cause various difficulties, but an
attempt must be made to overcome them, notably burden-sharing by as many countries
as possible, The same was true of resettlement, and in that connection many
Governments had shown great generosity. However, the need still existed and the
momentum must be maintained.

6. He introduced the report of the Secretary-General on the International

Conference on Assistance to Refugees in Africa (ICARA) (A/37/522). one of the
results of the Conference had been the receipt of pledges with a total value of
approximately $574 million., puring the course of the year, donors had not only

/-oo



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 4

(Mr. Hartling, BNHCR)

clarified the nature of their pledges but also specified the channel through which
their contributions were to be disbursed for the benefit of refugees and returnees
in Africa. At the present time, all but some $12 million of the pledges made at
ICARA had, at the expressed wishes of donors, been channelled either bilaterally
or through various agencies or organhizations, The report provided additional
information concerning the participation of ynited Nations agencies and
organizations in post-ICARA activities, It gave an up-to-date account of
activities and developments that had taken place since the convening of ICARA.

7. UNHCR liked to think of itself as a tool in the service of a humanitarian
cause, at the disposal of Governments and the international community, While it
had a share of responsibility in its own development, it was the Governments on
"whom it relied that determined the orientation and limits of its work. He wished
to thank all governments for their support in the common search for durable
solutions to refugee problems and looked forward to a constructive debate,

8. Mr. DOUGLAS (united States of America) said that the pnited States strongly
supported the nomination and re-election of Mr, Poul Hartling as ynited Nations
High Commissioner for Refugees. It also reaffirmed its support for the definition
of refugees given by the 1951 Convention and the 1967 pProtocol and for the mandate
of UNHCR. Those had proved to be of enduring validity, and, in the face of the
turbulent world refugee situation, the international community had been reminded
that UNHCR had a limited and specialized mandate.

9. His delegation was gratified by the importance which the High Commissioner
placed on continued internationalization of refugee resettlement efforts. all of
the major resettlement countries were prepared to continue to do their part, but
the number of refugees throughout the world had reached such proportions that a
relatively few countries could not continue to bear the burden alone., It was
also gratifying to note the accession of 10 more States to one or both of the
basic legal instruments, the 1951 Convention and the 1967 Protocol. Especially
encouraging was the fact that, with the accession of Japan, China and the
Philippines, the past Asian region was now well represented among parties to
those instruments,

10. 1t was important to note that the High Commissioner placed special emphasis on
the improvement of the administration and financial management of his organization.
Scarce resources must be managed with the greatest possible efficiency. The pnited
States government had adopted a course of budgetary austerity for its domestic
programmes, and it was now more important than ever that the ynited nNations agencies
should manage their operations efficiently if the ynited States was to maintain its
level of support. He commended the High Commissioner's efforts to provide special
programmes for the handicapped because that group, while small in numbers, was
particularly vulnerable. He also commended those countries that had offered
resettlement in disproportionately large numbers to handicapped south-gast asian
refugees, Special emphasis had been placed on ending pirate attacks against
refugees in South-East Asian waters, particularly attacks on women and young girls,
The misery and human suffering resulting from those attacks could not be
underestimated and the victims concerned were deeply and brutally wounded,

/aoo



A/C.3/37/SR.41
English
Page 5

(Mr. pouglas; ynited States)

The High Commissioner's initiatives for aiding vulnerable refugees, showing care
in managing resources and giving emphasis to burden-sharing were of special
importance. The most striking feature of the High Commissioner's report, however,
was its documentation that the number of refugees in the world continued to grow
despite the enormous resources committed towards durable solutions,

il, The High Commissioner had mentioned his concern about the tightening of
criteria for refugee resettlement and asylum in countries throughout the world.

The reason for that was that the flow of refugees had reached such proportions as
to constitute a mass movement of people from one part of the world to another,

The dislocation of whole cultures and peoples was not easily handled by traditional
solutions of resettlement or temporary asylum. It called for something more
fundamental, namely, the acknowledgement of the root causes that turned pecple into
refugees and the determination of the international community to do something about
them. uynless Member States looked at that basic question, future efforts would
.always be doomed to frustration and inadequacy.

12. among those root causes were the continued occupation and attempted

subjugation of Afghanistan by the Soviet pnion and the invasion of Kampuchea by

Viet Nam, two current events which alone had caused over 3,5 million people to flee
along the bitter road of becoming refugees. Another cause was the use of biological
and chemical weapons as indiscriminate and mass weapons of death against those Lao,
Kampucheans and aAfghans who dared to resist the absorption and extinction of their
traditional homelands by foreign troops. There was a clear need for improved
attention to the diagnostic and health aspects of that problem, His Government and
other Governments had thoroughly documented the use of those weapons in

South-gpast aAsia and aAfgbhanistan,

13. vYet another major cause of major refugee flows in the world was the deliberate
expulsion of masses of people as part of a country's aggressive foreign policy.

For example, in 1979, Cuba had expelled 125,000 persons, who had then taken refuge
in the pnited States. The Soclalist Republic of Viet Nam had also expelled large
numbers of ethnic Chinese. Part of the brutal treatment of refugees was the
deliberate splintering of families in order to preserve a means of obtaining
currency for foreign exchange. Many Vietnamese refugees had stated that only part
of their family bad been allowed to leave for that very reason; indeed, one of the
major sources of hard currency for the Vietnamese economy came from money sent by
refugees abroad to their families still living in viet nam,

14. women and children not only made up the vast majority of refugees in the
world but represented the generational strength of their peoples. The protracted
dislocation suffered by refugees affected women and children worst of all, The
potential for long-term harm to a people and its culture was especially apparent
in that connection; years of lingering in refugee camps sapped nations of the
contribution of entire generations.

15. 1n addition to piracy, there were other problems for women refugees that

needed to be addressed specifically. among the Afghan refugees in Pakistan, for
" example, there were many women who had been widowed or separated from their husbands

Sevo



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 6

(Mr. pouglas, pnited States)

by the war and who found themselves the heads of families they were not able to
suppor’.., His Government therefore hoped that the High Commissioner would make a
special effort to implement the mandate given him in paragraph 8 of General assembly
resolution A/36/125 on assistance to all women refugees., His delegation believed
that the High Commissioner skould make a special and separate report annually on

the problems of assistance ard protection of women refugees, and such a report

" should include recommendatiors to the General Assembly.

16, The mass movement of pecple was a problem for the industrialized nations which
tried to resettle populations culturally distinct from theirs, However, it had the
most severe impact on developing countries, UNHCR had documented that the largest
numbers of refugees in the wcrld today were to be found in pakistan and Africa, two
areas which had only limited resources to devote to refugees., pakistan, which
provided first asylum for neérly 3 million afghan refugees, and Sudan and Somalia,
which provided first asylum for hundreds of thousands of refugees from Ethiopia,
had long traditions of hospitality and openness towards refugees, However, the
presence of large numbers of refugees in those countries severely strained their
economies and put great pressures on their populations, Accordingly, he urged the
economic aid agencies within the pnited Nations system to give high priority to
developing countries which accepted large numbers of refugees for first asylum and
resettlement,

17, At the most recent meeting of the Executive Committee of UNHCR, the
representative of the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam, replying to a statement made
by the representative of the pnited sStates, had blamed the ynited States for the
huge numbers of refugees leaving Viet Nam since 1975. It was true that the ynited
States had left Vviet Nam seven years before; it was true that the ynited States had
been involved in a brave struggle to help the people of South viet Nam preserve
their independence and way off life; and it was true that there had been war and
hardship. However, before 1975 there had been no boat people and there had been no
widespread bunger, nor had there been tens of thousands of Vietnamese citizens
shipped off to foreign lands as cheap exported labour. puring the pnited States
presence in Viet Nam, Buddhist monks had celebrated ancient rites in their temples,
there had been freedom of movement and peaceful emigration, and viet Nam had

been an exporter of food. Today Viet Nam's largest export was refugees; over

1.3 million people had left that country since 1975. The horror stories of the
boat people were well known 0 everyone, as was the fact that refugees still
continued to leave, choosing to face probable pirate attacks and grave danger of
death rather than remain in a country whose future promised only more of today's
cruel despair.

18, If members of the Commi:tee wished to pay a tribute to the courage of refugees,
then they must themselves find the courage to talk about the conditions which were
driving large numbers of people from their homes. uynless Member States were
willing to be burdened with :he cost of first asylum, resettlement and care, they
would have to face up to the fact that ultimately the problem was a political one
and that the High Commissioner must look to them for action. pacts of conscious
State policy created the vas: majority of refugees in the world today, such as

3 million Afghan refugees fleeing the Soviet invasion of afghanistan, millions of

[ene



A/C.3/37/8R. 41
English
Page 7

(Mr. Douglas,; ynited States)

refugees in Africa fleeing Soviet, Cuban and Libyan subversion, and hundreds of
thousands of Khmer refugees in Thailand fleeing the Vietnamese invasion of
Kampuchea. It should not be forgotten that those régimes which were responsible
for producing the largest numbers of refugees in the world today did nothing to
assist them. Some were parties to the Convention and Protocol, yet they violated
them repeatedly and blatantly and contributed not one cent to the international
community's work to aid refugees., That was a problem which needed to be discussed,
and it was unfortunate that attempts by the Federal Republic of Germany and Canada
to have a full and fair discussion of the matter in appropriate ynited nations
forums had met with delays and even outright resistance,

19. rThe kind of world mankind wished to live in was, ideally, one in which yUNHCR
was not needed because there were no refugees. gynfortunately, the international
community was far from that goal today, but if States Members of the ynited nations
had the will to face the root causes of refugee flows, there would be progress
towards a just solution of refugee problems. Uynited nNations resources could be
effective if used wisely, and Members should commit themselves to that goal with
the expectation that the report of the High Commissioner in 1983 would show that
common efforts had turned the tide and that the future would be one of hope rather
than despair for the world's refugees.

20, Mr. YLRICHSEN (Denmark) said that the continued mass flights of people to
neighbouring countries, not only represented enormous human suffering but placed
increasingly difficult burdens upon their hosts and the international community as
a whole., tThe magnitude and complexity of the problems of refugees and displaced
persons, which were especially serious in africa, asia and ratin america, had also
increased the heavy responsibilities of the office of the High Commissioner for
Refugees, Those problems were compounded by the fact that the majority of refugees
were in developing countries, often the least developed, which required substantial
international support in terms of assistance and offers of settlement.
International support from Member States to UNHCR was therefore imperative,

21, oObserving that the current mandate of the UNHCR was due to expire at the end
of 1982, he said that the High Commissioner had already taken steps to strengthen
and restructure his Office in order to meet new and more complex refugee problems.
Although the General assembly had conferred special responsibilities on the 0Office
in particular situations, the mandate itself had remained untouched. Since the
mandate had proven to be sufficiently flexible to deal promptly and effectively
with a wide variety of situations, his delegation felt that yUnNHCR should continue
without any changes in its terms of reference,

22, Turning to international protection, he pointed out that, according to the
report, although some developments had been encouraging, others had necessarily
given rise to concern, For example, there had been an overall tendency among

States to pursue more restrictive policies towards refugees and asylum-seekers,

It was also of great concern that, in spite of the principle of non-refoulement,
some asylum-seekers had been forcibly returned to countries where they were

in danger of persecution or even death, Emphasizing the obligation to observe
scrupulously the humanitarian rules and principles adopted to protect the individual

Soon



A/C.3/37/SR.41
English
Page 8

(Mr. vlrichsen, penmark)

from persecution, his Government invited those States which had not yet done so to
become parties to ynited Nations Convention relating to the Status of Refugees and
to its protocol.

23, Threats to refugees and asylum-seekers and violations of their physical safety
posed a particularly serious p:roblem, which had continued during the year. Tragic
recent examples included the shocking attack on two refugee camps in Beirut, and
other such attacks in southern Africa, Central america and Asia. Those cases
called for immediate action to provide both aid and protection. Another problem
was the plight of refugees in distress at sea. The situation seemed to be
deteriorating, since fewer ships were stopping to rescue refugees in distress,
penmark had welcomed the convening of a meeting on the subject in July 1982,
Feeling that a more equitable international sharing of responsibilities was
preferable to the adoption of more restrictive measures, including narrower
criteria for asylum, he expresied the hope that just and expedient solutions could
be found, so that further tragedies might be avoided.

24, Welcoming the decline in :he number of boat people, he saw that the steps
taken to implement the programme of orderly departures had doubtlessly contributed
significantly to that decline. He also expressed satisfaction at the conclusion of
an agreement between the Government of Thailand and UNHCR on an exclusive programme
to combat the piracy to which 30 many boat people had been subjected.

25, The self-sufficiency of refugees, which had become an increasingly important
aspect of the High Commissioner's work, had raised the question of the boundary
between humanitarian work for refugees and development assistance. His delegation
felt that, even in the emergency phase, assistance which might have a developmental
connotation should be provided. The crucial question, however, was to determine
where UNHCR could and should piase out its activities and hand over its
responsibilities to other agencies. The key factor in any such decision must
always be the ability of other competent agencies to take over, Leaving refugees
to their own destiny and thereody causing new and humanitarian problems was a course
that must be rejected.

26. His delegation was gratified that in recent years UNHCR's budget had
stabilized and that the increase in expenditures foreseen for 1983 was a reasonable
one. The proposed budget required substantial contributions from all countries,
preferably in a manner that woald make for a more equitable sharing of the burden,
His country's firm support for UNHCR could be seen from its contribution of $30
million to UNHCR activities in the period 1978-198l. 1In 1982, penmark had already
contributed about $11 million, and this figure was expected to be higher in 1983,
He also reaffirmed his country's commitment to participate actively in UNHCR's
resettlement programmes.

27. The High Oommissioner's t2rm of office had been marked by a dramatic increase
in the numbers of refugees, an expansion in the scope of UNHCR'S programmes and an
encouraging increase in participation in the activities of the Office. 1Increased
support from the international community was essential in helping UNHCR continue
its activities on a stable basis and improved the Office's ability to adapt to new

Jeoo-



A/C.3/37/5R. 41
English
Page 9

(Mr. ylrichsen, penmark)

and demanding situations. puring his time in office, the High Commissioner had
adhered strictly to the fundamental principle that UNHCR's activities were
non-political. There was no doubt that that humanitarian approach to his
responsibilities had led a large number of Member States belonging to all regional
groups to support the candidature of the High Commissioner for another term in
office,

28, sSpeaking on behalf of the ten member States of the European Community, he said
that those countries had often expressed their deep concern about the tragic
problems posed by massive flows of refugees in various parts of the world. They
had emphasized certain basic principles which should be respected in connection
with refugee problems, including respect for the fundamental human rights of
refugees. They had also stressed the importance of increased efforts to help
refugees and the need for a more equitable sharing of such efforts among the
members of the international community. They had given practical evidence of their
concern by admitting or agreeing to accept refugees for resettlement and
contributing to the funds of UNHCR, both individually and through the Community.
The total amount of the Community's contributions to UNHCR since 1974 was
approximately $210 million, including $115 million in cash and $95 million worth of
food. as a follow-up to the International Meeting on the Refugee Situation in
South-gast Asia, held at Geneva in 1979, the Community had contributed more than
$40 million through UNHCR for assistance to refugees in that area., Following the
International Conference on aAssistance to Refugees in Africa, the Community had,

as of 24 september 1982, contributed $52,200,000 in cash and food. The Community
was currently financing programmes dealing with food aid, repatriation and
resettlement of refugees and various forms of assistance to a number of aAfrican
countries; those programmes amounted to more than $9 million, and substantial aid
through UNHCR was planned for the very near future in South-gast Asia, Pakistan
and Central America.

29, Mr, GORANSSON (Sweden) said that the recent increase in the number of refugees
constituted an ever—-present reminder that preparedness for new emergencies must
remain a priority concern for UNHCR. The problem of finding durable solutions for
the refugee problem was still largely unsolved; as a result, the assistance
activities of UNHCR had grown very rapidly and now dominated the budget., Since
most major assistance programmes had developed beyond the emergency phase, UNHCR
should be able to concentrate more on durable solutions, such as measures to
promote the self-sufficiency of refugees. He was gratified that UNHCR had already
initiated many programmes of that nature, often in co-operation with other agencies.
Its activities had thereby grown extremely complex and now related inter alia to
health, water, education, agriculture and vocational training, nloEE_GTEE—EEbse
developments, particular attention had been given to the question of the mandate of
UNHCR and the co-ordination of activities with other agencies and parties concerned.

30, Turning to the mandate of UNHCR, he said that, in accordance with the general
feeling expressed at the thirty-third session of the Executive Committee, his
delegation felt that the mandate should be continued unchanged for another

fi\. . years. He also considered it very useful that the General pssembly was

able to authorize the High Commissioner, when the need arose, to go beyond his

lovs



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
gnglish
page 10

(Mr. GO6ransson, Sweden)

traditional responsibilities aid undertake assistance tasks for uprooted people who
would otherwise be left in utter distress.

3l. cCo-ordination was important for the smooth phasing out of UNHCR involvement
and the transfer of responsibility to other organizations; it should, however, be
initiated at the earliest possible stage, in keeping with General Assembly
resolution 36/225, which was aimed at strengthening the capacity of the ynited
Nations system to respond to emnergencies, In any emergency situation, a number of
agencies were called upon, oftz=n by the General assembly, to take part in assistance
activities, 'rthey should all respond to those resolutions within their respective
field of competence. ‘The UNHCR often found it difficult to engage other agencies
in activities for refugees whizh bordered on development; that was a serious
problem, since refugee flows often occurred between developing countries, some of
them among the least developed. Plans for the care and maintenance of refugees
should take account of the living conditions of the local population and the level
of social and physical infrastructure in the country of asylum. Similar
considerations must be taken into account in the country of origin when large
numbers of refugees were repatriated. Assistance to refugees and returnees in such
countries should be seen as an integral part of the development efforts in the
area, and development agencies, in consultation with the host Governments, should
be more closely involved in meeting the assistance requirements of refugees. As
the first-asylum countries had already generously offered a safe haven to refugees,
material assistance should be forthcoming from external sources, so that ongoing
development programmes would not be disrupted.

32. Aalthough the bulk of yNH(R's financial resources was used for assistance
programmes, protection remained its core activity, in accordance with its mandate.
It was encouraging to note thet the principles of non-refoulement and temporary
admission were gradually being accepted as binding norms. However, there had been
many reminders of the need to strengthen the protection of refugees, The criminal
and reckless attacks on defenceless men, women and children in the Beirut refugee
camps illustrated the urgent need for legal and other measures to increase the
safety of such people. Attachks on refugees in other parts of the world had been
equally dismaying. He hoped that Mr. Schnyder's projected survey of the various
aspects of the problem of military attacks on refugee camps and settlements would
indicate measures to help curb such aggression. More important, all countries
should be urged to accede to .nternational instruments on humanitarian matters and
observe the rules laid down therein. It was reassuring that a large number of
countries had acceded to those instruments in the past year,

33. It was of the utmost importance that UNHCR should be strongly represented in
central america, where the situation seemed to be steadily deteriorating. His
delegation would support any effort by UNHCR to pursue its policies for protecting
and assisting refugees and for finding durable solutions.

34. wWith regard to repatriat.on, his delegation supported a regional approach,
with durable solutions planned in relation to the development of an area, as was
the case in the Horn of Africia. He had hoped to see more progress in the programme
for returnees to Ethiopia. The situation was, however, difficult and might present

Joes



A/C.3/37/9R. 41
English
Page 11

(Mr. GOransson, -Sweden)

more problems than the High Commissioner's report indicated. Generally speaking,
an imbalance in assistance between countries or regions might induce large numbers
of people to leave their homes only to become refugees or displaced persons. The
same logic seemed applicable in Kampuchea, where sustained humanitarian assistance
for needy Kampucheans inside their own countries would create the material
conditions under which the inhabitants were more likely to remain and which would,
at the same time, be conducive to the repatriation of additional numbers of
refugees, He sincerely hoped that organized repatriation from Thailand to
Kampuchea would soon prove possible for those wishing to return to Kampuchea.

aAs far as Afghanistan was concerned, he repeated his delegation's call for a
political solution that would create the conditions conducive to the voluntary
repatriation of refugees. In the meantime, the international community would have
to provide continued large-scale assistance to ease the heavy burden on Ppakistan.

35. There must be greater efforts to achieve peace and security and to create
reasonable economic and social conditions for all in order to diminish or eliminate
the causes of mass exoduses., Problems connected with food scarcity and population
growth must be solved, and respect for human rights upheld. However, in order not
to compromise its exclusively humanitarian task of protecting and assisting
refugees, it was essential that UNHCR itself should not get involved in the
so-called "pre-flow phase". It was important that all countries should remember
their obligations under pnited Nations principles and, in particular, their
responsibilities towards their own citizens, However, it was equally important
that efforts to eliminate the causes of mass exoduses should in no way infringe the
accepted principles of international protection or the right of everyone to leave
any country, including his own,

36, The High Commissioner and his staff had dealt ably with the difficult problems
before them. His delegation was gratified to learn of the High Commissioner's
readiness to serve another term and would give him its whole-hearted support.

37. Mr, BIRIDO (Sudan) said that there had been serious developments concerning
the situation of refugees in various reqgions of the world, including additional
flows of refugees in Pakistan, Central america and many parts of africa, piracy and
military attacks on refugees in many regions, and frequent failure to observe the
principle of non-refoulement. The magnitude and dangers of military attacks on
refugee camps and settlements and the urgent need to protect them had been confirmed
by the recent inhuman, and barbaric massacres of Palestinian refugees in Beirut,
after the Israeli aggression against Lebanon and the Palestinian people. Refugees
in southern africa were facing similar military attacks. He therefore looked
forward to Mr. Schnyder's report concerning military attacks on refugee camps and
settlements in southern Africa and elsewhere, His delegation agreed that concrete
measures and principles should be adopted in the proper international setting to
ensure better protection of refugee camps.

38, It was important to orient the work of UNHCR towards field activities and
increase the delegation of authority. The conditions of service of field staff
should be improved in order to attract persons of the highest calibre, as the
Sub~Committee on Administration and Financial Matters had suggested in paragrapn 15

Soon



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 12

(Mr, -Birido, Sudan)

of document A/AC.96/612, the UNHCR should, as a matter of urgency, bring its
recruitment policy and procedures in line with the stipulations of its statute and
other relevant General assembly resolutions,

39, His delegation supported the continuation of UNHCR for a further period and
felt that its mandate, as modified by relevant General aAssembly and Economic and
social Council resolutions, bad proved to be useful and flexible in responding to
changing refugee situations, It was also confident that the Executive Committee
would continue to fulfil the functions and responsibilities entrusted to it.

40. cConcerning the International Conference on Assistance to Refugees in africa,
he noted the statement in paragraph 36 of document E/1982/76 that while there had
been certain successes, the c¢verall results of ICARA had fallen short of
expectations. His delegatior therefore supported the view, stated in paragraph 39
of that report, that there wzs a need to further review with African Governments
concerned the burdens imposeé on their national economies by refugees and returnees
and to provide assistance, where necessary, in preparing complete documentation to
support requests for international assistance.

41. In connection with the situation of refugees in the Sudan, he expressed his
thanks and appreciation to all those who had given valuable assistance to his
government in its efforts to provide essential services for the growing number of
refugees. The competent Sudénese authorities had adopted a number of administrative
and organizational measures with a view to increasing the country'’s ability to
absorb and provide more assistance to refugees. Those measures included the
establishment of a national council and a special fund for refugees. ponors and
voluntary organizations were represented in the advisory Committee for the fund.
voluntary organizations were also entrusted with the implementation of important
projects. The ILO/UNHCR inccme-generating project for refugees in the Sudan was a
good example of co-ordinatior between ynited Nations agencies in delivering
humanitarian assistance to refugees, 1In September 1982, a seminar had been held at
Rhartoum in close co-operaticon with UNHCR and the rFord roundation in order to
explore and gain an insight into the refugee experience of the Sudan and to submit
proposals to improve the sitvation of the refugees.

42. while the refugees from Chad had started to return voluntarily to their
country of origin, the influx of refugees across his country's southern and eastern
borders had continued unabated, bringing the total number of refugees in the gSudan
to 627,000, In that connection, his delegation fully supported the recommendations
included in the report of the Secretary-General on the situation of refugees in the
sudan (A/37/178), in particular those concerning education and health, social
development and welfare, and the self-support programme for women heads of families,
He reguested the Secretary-General, in close co-operation with donors and the
relevant specialized agencies, to ensure that the necessary sums were made available
for implementing those recommendations, The report further emphasized, in
paragraph 30, the need for cc-ordinating the work of ynited Nations agencies and
programmes in phasing out emergency assistance and suggested that those agencies
should consider their role ard intervention and the phasing out of their assistance
in the light of the economic, logistical and manpower constraints in the country,

Sons



A/C.3/37/SR. 41
English
Page 13

(Mr. Birido, Sudan)

He urged the High Commissioner and the relevant specialized agencies to continue
their efforts and to ensure the continuity of the basic and essential services.
He also emphasized the importance of assisting countries of asylum in their
development activities,

43. mTurning to the management and leadership of UNKCR, he said, firstly, that
while the Office had been established to take care of the problem of refugees in
Europe, the overwhelming majority of refugees now came from developing countries
and lived in developing countries, That situation was not reflected in the
leadership of the office. It was fair and legitimate that the developing countries
should have a say and a role to play in the leadership of UNHCR. Secondly, while
the assistance provided by the international community was valuable and important,
the real donors, as the High Commissioner had repeatedly said, were the countries
of asylum, which shared their land facilities and various essential services with
the refugees, in spite of their limited resources and difficult conditions,
Thirdly, he was convinced that Member States and the international community as

a whole would continue to undertake their commitment to the noble and humanitarian
objectives of assisting the refugees through UNHCR, an established institution
with a long tradition and practice and a well-defined mandate. Fourthly, his
country had had long experience with refugees, currently serving as host to
hundreds of thousands of them. It had adopted liberal policies, had acceded

to all the relevant international conventions and instruments and had incorporated
their provisions into its national legislation. 1In view of the foregoing,

his Government had decided to submit the candidature of His Excellency

Mr. pafalla gl Hag Yousif Medani, Minister and President of the Supreme Council
for Religious Affairs and Administrator General of Endowment, for the post

of High Commissioner., That candidature had been endorsed by the Organization of
the Islamic Conference and the Arab League and had received considerable support
from African, aAsian and European countries, He was convinced that, if elected,
Mr. Medani would provide UNHCR with excellent leadership.

44. Mr. CHAVANAVIRAJ (Thailand) said that his country's refugee problem had
started in 1975, when tens of thousands of refugees, mostly Lao, had begun to pour
into Thailand, after the fall of saigon and the ensuing political changes in raos
and Cambodia. The number of Kampuchean refugees had increased to more than 300, 000
in 1979 and 1980. Had it not been for the open-door policy of the Government of
Thailand during that period and the actions of the international community and the
organizations and agencies of the ynited Nations system, half of the Kampuchean
population might have perished.

45. Aalthough there appeared to be a downward trend in the number of Indo~Chinese
displaced persons seeking refuge in Thailand, there were still 168,626 1rao,
Vietnamese and Kampuchean refugees in the Thai holding and processing centres

as of September 1982, There were also nearly 300,000 Xampucheans along the
Thai-Kampuchean border who still needed relief assistance and whose numbers might
increase if there was an escalation of the fighting in RKampuchea. Since the end
of 1978, the massive outflow of Kampucheans, combined with armed incursions and
cross-border shellings had displaced almost 100,000 innocent Thai villagers.

Jeos



A/C.3/37/SR.41
English
Page 14

(Mr. - Chavanaviraj, Thailand)

He therefore urged donor courtries to continue to support the relevant pnited
Nations programmes and to assist his Government in caring for those people.

46, Aalthough some 400,000 Irndo~Chinese refugees and displaced persons had been
resettled in third countries, his country's problem remained as serious as it

had been in 1979 and 1980. fhere were still 200,000 Indo-Chinese refugees and
displaced persons awaiting resettlement, but the rate of resettlement had declined
sharply in the preceding 10 months. One of the reasons for that drop was that

in 1981 many receiving countries had laid down more selective criteria and more
difficult procedures for screening and accepting people for resettlement,

In adopting an open-door policy, his Government had acted out of humanitarian
concern and had been given strong assurances from friendly countries and the
international community that ample opportunities for resettlement would be
provided, His Government strongly hoped that those assurances, which had been
reaffirmed at the International Meeting on Refugees and pisplaced Persons in
South-gpast asia, held at Geneva in 1979, were still valid. He stressed once again
the view of the five ASEAN Foreign Ministers, expressed at the Ministerial Meeting
in Bali in 1979, that the granting of first refuge by the ASEAN countries depended
on the commitment of resettlement in third countries and the avoidance of a
residual refugee problem., Thailand and the rest of the ASEAN countries were
developing countries with limited resources and could not bear that burden
indefinitely. They hoped that countries in a position to do so would continue to
open their doors to the refugees.

47. His Government also attached great importance to the voluntary repatriation
programmes for Indo-Chinese clisplaced persons, which constituted one of the most
important mandates of UNHCR. Little progress had been made in that area, and it
was to be hoped that the off:ce of the High Commissioner would continue to work, in
close co-operation with all concerned, to expedite that programme.

48. With regard to the prob.em of physical attacks on asylum-seekers in the

south china Sea, he said that Thailand did not condone such serious crimes and
continued to do its best to suppress them. However, because of the vastness of
the South China Sea, crimes committed there were extremely difficult to suppress
and prevent., Nevertheless, his Government had agreed to launch a suppression
programme for a period of 12 months starting in June 1982, with assistance supplied
by 12 donor countries through UNHCR. Although the programme had been working well,
it was Thailand's firm conviction that the cause of the problem was not being
addressed, 1If the programme was to be successful, Viet Nam would have to continue
to co-operate closely with tie international community in facilitating an orderly
departure of Vietnamese asylum-seekers to third countries. Once again, assistance
from the international commuiity was essential.

49. The problem of refugees and displaced persons, which was in most cases the
result of internal power struggles or external aggression from other countries, was
very serious not only in Sout:h-gast aAsia but also in South asia, the Middle Erast,
Africa and ratin america, The ASEAN countries believed that global solutions to
the problems of Indo-Chinese refugees and displaced persons depended on a
comprehensive political settlement of the Kampuchean question,

fons



aA/C.3/37/SR. 4l
English
Page 15

(Mr. chavanaviraj; Thailand)

50. His delegation conveyed the profound gratitude of the Thai Government and
people to all nations and to all international and voluntary organizations for
their essential role in helping displaced persons in Thailand. It appreciated the

work done by the High Commissioner and his 0Office and fully supported the renewal
of the mandate of UNHCR.

51. Mr. KAMARA (Sierra Leone) said that conflicts and war between nations and the
denial of the human, political and civil rights of individuals were the root causes
of the diverse and enormous refugee problems facing the world. The question of
refugees was probably as old as conflicts and stress within and between nations.
What was new was perhaps the size and enormity of the problem. Although UNHCR had
addressed itself efficiently to the refugee situation, the problem had continued to
grow as a result of man's intolerance, the denial of basic human rights and the
growing number of international conflicts in various parts of the world.

52, The report of the High Commissioner presented a grim but realistic picture of
the refugee situation. It was clear from the report that the refugee problem was
nowhere more acute than in Africa. Of an estimated world-wide figure of 12 million
refugees, Africa was said to harbour 5 million. The reasons for that phenomenon
were largely rooted in Africa's colonial past, as symbolized by the South african
régime, which denied basic human rights to the majority of its citizens and imposed
the will of the minority on them. The acts of terror committed by the South
African régime had intimidated millions of non-whites and had forced some of them
to flee to neighbouring African countries. South Africa not only systematically
abused the rights of its people but also disregarded the rights of other nations
and attacked its neighbours militarily. 1Its continued illegal occupation of
Namibia also compounded the refugee problem in Africa. Although other problems did
exist in Africa, it was evident that the situation in southern Africa was the
greatest single factor contributing to the continuation and scope of the refugee
problem in that continent.

53. According to the report of the High Commissioner, about 40 of the

50 independent countries of Africa were directly or indirectly affected by the
refugee problem. Sierra reone itself had offered a substantial number of places to
Namibian children in its schools,

54, His delegation was pleased to note that the institution of asylum had been
further strengthened by the adoption in July 1981 of the african Charter of Human
and People's Rights and by the adoption in September 1981 of the yniversal rIslamic
Declaration on Human Rights. It also noted efforts made by countries to establish
new laws and administrative measures relating to the status of refugees, It was to
be hoped that such measures would be non-discriminatory in their treatment of
refugees,

55. His delegation felt that UNHCR had, as in previous years, addressed itself
adequately and efficiently to the problems of refugees in all parts of the world.
The Office not only should be maintained but should also be supported by all
peace-loving nations and organizations. His delegation suggested that the
operational capacity of UNHCR should be further expanded.

Seoe



A/C.3/37/8R. 41
English
Page 16

(Mr, -Ramara; -§ierra- L,eone)

56, He expressed his country's appreciation to the bodies of the ynited Nations
system for their help in dealing with the African refugee situation and for
co-operating with the Secretariat of the Organization of African ynity with regard
to relief efforts for refugees in Africa,

57. the International Conference on Assistance to Refugees in Africa (ICARA) had
met at Geneva in 198l to focus attention on the plight of refugees in Africa,
mobilize resources for refugee programmes and assist countries of asylum in their
efforts to strengthen and increase the capacity of the services and facilities to
absorb refugees, The Secretary-General, in his report on the ICARA, said that
although world consciousness about the plight of refugees and returnees in africa
bhad been raised, the overal.l results of ICARA had fallen short of expectations.
Even the ongoing refugee programmes in Africa for 1982 had not been fully covered
by pledges made at that Conference, The view of the Secretary-General had been
supported by the Council of Ministers of the Organization of African pnity at its
meeting held at Nairobi in 1982, There was therefore a clear need for the United
Nations and other development and funding agencies to assist African countries
further in strengthening their economic and social infrastructures in order to cope
with the burden of refugee:s and returnees.

58. His delegation wished to express the appreciation of the Government and people
of Sierra Ieone to the Comnission of puropean Communities for its generous
contributions to UNHCR.

59. 1In addition to requesting assistance and support from nations and
organizations for refugees in Africa, his delegation appealed to all warring
nations and nations in conflict to end their belligerent activities, which were the
greatest contributors to the refugee problem throughout the world.

60, Mr, -MARSHALL (united Ringdom) said that refugee problems were a matter of
world-wide concern. UNHCR bad become a major actor on the world stage, concerned
with mitigating the effects of problems whose origins were undoubtedly political.
However, it was also concerned with maintaining its humanitarian and non-political
character, the only possikle basis of its effectiveness.

61. The need to keep the political aspects of problems in their proper perspective
had two very important political consequences. Firstly, the Third Committee must
see the work of UNHCR in relation to the rest of the humanitarian efforts of the
pnited Nations. The Committee must be fully aware of the work done by UNHCR and of
the conditions necessary for its effective functioning. Secondly, UNHCR had to
maintain a network of relationships with other bodies within the ynited Nations
system, with intergovernmental bodies outside it and with non-governmental
organizations, whose help in dealing with refugees and distress relief were
generally indispensable. Such a network was essential both to the efficient
discharge of UNHCR's responsibilities and to the preservation of its humanitarian
and non-political character.

T



A/C.”/37/SR.41
Engl.sh
Page 17

(Mr. Marshall, United Kingdom)

62. The present Assembly had before it the question of the continuation of the
Of fice of the High Commissioner. Because of the Office's record and the scale of
the refugee problem, his delegation wished to see the High Commissioner's mandate
renewed unchanged.

63. While there were no new major flows of refugees in 1981 and the flows which
had taken place were less considerable than in previous years, refugee problems
remained severe in Asia, Africa and Latin America. It was distressing but not
altogether surprising that, after the great achievements of the international
humanitarian community in recent years, there had appeared a degree of "compassion
fatiqgue" which carried with it a reduced willingness to accept refugees for
resettlement, Although the climate had become more difficult for UNHCR because of
current financial difficulties in most States, the representatives of the Office
could never suffer from "compassion fatigue". Their work deserved continuing
support. The Nobel Prize announced in 1981 had been a just recognition of their
past achievements.

64. The field representatives in the countries of first asylum and the Governments
of those countries deserved the gratitude of the international community. Pakistan
had received some 2.7 million refugees from Afghanistan as a direct consequence of
the Soviet invasion and occupation. Thailand continued to cope with vast numbers
of refugees from neighbouring countries. The Central American countries, the Sudan
and Somalia had continued to receive flows of refugees.

65. Parallel with assistance was the fundamental work of the Division of
International Protection in accumulating and refining the legal concepts of refugee
work. The members of the Division interceded with Governments to protect
individual refugees,

66. Unfortunately, in 198l new emphasis had had to be placed on the need for the
physical, as distinct from the legal, protection of refugees. His country had
participated in a new programme during the year to protect refugees against pirate
attacks at sea. The Sub-Commission of the Executive Committee dealing with matters
of protection had discussed the problem of attacks on refugee camps in Lebanon and
elsewhere.

67. His Government continued to play its part by providing political and financial
support to refugees. New aid amounting to 1,475,000 pounds sterling had been
recently announced for refugees in Somalia, the Sudan and Uganda and for those
leaving Viet Nam. In addition to that sum, the contributions of the United Kingdom
for the benefit of refugees had totalled £24.5 million in 198l. His country
continued to receive refugees and to respond to the particular needs of

South-East Asia. It supported the programme of orderly departure from Viet Nam,
although administrative difficulties on the Vietnamese side had prevented the
programme from being as effective as it might have been.

68. Since 1975, Hong Kong had been a major point of first asylum for Vietnamese

boat people. Although nearly 90,000 of them had been resettled, over 13,000 still
awaited resettlement. In recent months, Hong Kong had been receiving no less than

/-..



A/C.3/37/8R. 41
Bnglish
Page 18

(Mr. Marshall, pnited Xingdom)

half of all boat people leaving Viet Nam, while only one eighth of the resettlement
places had gone to boat people waiting in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, Hong Kong had
maintained its exemplary pclicy of non-refoulement of boat people from viet Nam,
His Government was grateful to UNHCR for all its assistance but was very concerned
at the recent trend and urged the resettlement countries to understand Hong Kong's
particular difficulties,

69. UNHCR would continue to require large financial contributions for its work in
the 1980s, However, the world economic situation had become substantially more
difficult than in the past. Some contributors to international organizations were
in favour of "zero real grcwth® in the international system., That expression should
not be taken to mean "economy at any price®, 1In the case of UNHCR, it should mean
leaner administration and more assistance to the refugees and those who need help,
A balance would have to be drawn between the real needs that existed and the new
difficulties in providing resources to meet them, It was particularly hard to
justify an increase in the number of staff when assistance programmes were
shrinking,.

70. His delegation was confident that the General assembly at its current session
would lay the foundation for a further five years of invaluable work by UNHCR.

The meeting rose at 1,15 p.m.






